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Application and Process Impromptu Q&A 

March 13, 2002



Purchasing (Pur):  Jane Maples

Pur 1) Can you change the PR?
Answer:
The final decision hasn’t been made on how much, if any, information on the PR the buyer can change.

Pur 2) Will the solicitation number be consistent across the company?

Answer:  Yes.  We created a standard that will be consistent across the agency.  The solicitation number configuration is:  first two digits are fiscal year, dash, P group, dash, three digit sequential number.  This scheme identifies the fiscal year as well as the buyer who issued the solicitation.    

Pur 3) Is there a timeframe for entering RFQ's? 

Answer:
When issuing a solicitation you will put an RFQ in the system that will be for a generic solicitation vendor.  Issue the solicitation, post it to EPS, and then allow for the 30/45/60 days.  If it is strictly on price go ahead and create an RFQ for each vendor that has submitted a quote.  Then let the system do the ranking for you.  For the source board type solicitations where the evaluation is on factors other than price or price related you would probably only want to put in the successful offers.  You will only create another RFQ for the successful vendor.
Pur 4) Isn’t the RFQ for the successful vendor going to be identical to the generic one?

Answer:
The RFQ for the successful offer is no longer with a generic solicitation vendor but with the specific vendor that is to receive the award.  The RFQ window requires a vendor.   You will enter the quotation information that is tied directly to the successful vendor’s RFQ.  It is real easy to copy and save from the original RFQ so you are not rekeying anything.
Pur 5) Why does it make you redo an identical document just to insert?

Answer:
It is COTs.  Their concept of solicitations is not exactly our concept.

Pur 6) When copying over from one RFQ vendor to another does it replace the abstract?

Answer:
It replaces the abstract so that you have an electronic version of what those prices were and it’ll rank them.

Pur 7)  What kind of security is associated with the fields?

Answer:  Everything will be role-based security.  Approximately 70 roles have been identified for the whole Core Financial.  Within purchasing we had 17 or 18.  A requisitioner would not have access to those windows but a buyer or a CO would.

Pur 8) Will the Center be tracked in terms of the source selection has to be made "x" months after the proposal is received?

 Answer:  There is a workflow lead-time type report.  What SAP doesn’t have is milestones.  So the standard, "I’m supposed to do this within "x" amount of days", is not in there.  Actuals are available and that is the reason it is important to do a RFQ to the generic solicitation vendor.  It shows there is a solicitation.  You can create RFQs for those vendors that have submitted and use placeholders so it will show the proposals are there.  

Pur 9) Can SAP handle different currency?

Answer:  Yes.  One of the fields is what kind of currency.  However, our understanding is that payments are always made in U.S. dollars.

Pur 10) Is there an attachment button in the PR and PO window?
Answer:
Yes.

Pur 11)  Is the release strategy the approval process?
Answer:
Yes.  Workflow and release strategy are synonymous with the approval process.

Pur 12) How would you fund 100 widgets with a PR for 100k (Network Account Assignment)?

Answer:  You can distribute from two projects by quantity or split it by percentage.  It can’t be split by a specific dollar amount. This is going to cause you to make some adjustments on how you fund the contracts.   

Pur 13)   What drives the need for multiple procurement line items?
Answer:
The kind of money you are using or the kind of supplies or services (e.g., R&D or training) you are buying.

Pur 14) What happens when you have 200 accounting line items?
Answer:  There are 999 procurement lines.  There are 99 accounting lines per procurement line.  You will have to look at how to roll funding up and how to incrementally fund contracts differently than you do today.

Pur 15) Can I write a contract with only one procurement line item that has 48 or 200 accounting line items?

Answer:
You can write one procurement line item that has up to 99 accounting line items if it is the same kind of money, either P, K or N.  If it is all P and is shuttle money or station money it is probably going to be project or network.  

Pur 16) If a contract has 48 accounting line items, because the money comes from 48 different sources, how do I run up to 99 accounting lines?  Every time you incrementally fund is that a new accounting line item?

Answer:  If you fund 48 today and are going to incrementally fund tomorrow you can’t change those.  You have to add new ones.  It is a new procurement line if it is on a new PR.  Upfront you will have to plan the structuring of the contracts and incremental funding to minimize that problem.

Pur 17)  Are the Accenture people going to know this level of detail?

Answer:
They are going to help you understand it.  Some of them may know the agency design but the group as a whole is not going to know the agency design.  They are going to help you work through that.  They are going to have to learn it too.  As a team that is what you have to do.

Pur 18) There is an IDIQ contract with the total obligated of $300k of which $250k is JSC.  Will the only thing that SAP will reflect be that $250k has been obligated, even though the IDIQ contract states $300k is obligated and $50k is another agency?

Answer:  The only thing reflected within SAP is what you’ve done within SAP.  It is not that you are obligating $300k but it is your potential contract value.  You show a contract value as $300k of which we’ve obligated directly $250k.  There are user-defined fields that pick up contract values, potential contract value and obligated amounts.  In addition, there are obligated cost/fee and cost/fee for values.  The obligated amounts are to show exactly what you’ve obligated related to cost/fee.  The values should be what is the max so that it reflects the potential.

Pur 19)  Can you go all the way up to contract award without having a PR?  

Answer:  You will want to have a planning PR to keep track of things.

Pur 20) Will the system let you do a RFQ without a PR behind it?  Can you have $0 dollar value contract PO without having a PR?

Answer:
There has to be a PR before you take it to PO because you will not be able to save a PO without a PR.   The $0 dollar value contract is the only case where you will not need a PR.  You will check the free item boxes.  

Pur 21) Is a procurement line item considered a contract end item?

Answer:  I can’t tell you definitively that it is. If there is something received as an end item it will be mapped back to that PLI.  Does that mean that every PLI has to be an end item?  I don’t think it will be because some line items are going to be only incremental funding. 

Budget Execution (BE):  Cynthia Smith

BE 1) Will the Centers be authorized to enter or create Center unique coding?
Answer:  All coding structures, such as WBS’s and Network/Activities will be entered into SAP by the Competency Center.  The budget formulation process and/or Headquarter Program Offices will be responsible for identifying new Fund Center and Project/WBS structures.  The request for creation of new structures will be forwarded to the Competency Center.  Center CFO’s will be responsible for the requesting and Center approval process for Network/Activities.  The request will be forwarded to the Competency Center for creation.

BE 2) Will the 506 process be paper or electronic?  Will it be within SAP?

Answer:
It will be electronic for Centers who have implemented SAP, paper for Centers not implemented.  

BE 3) How will we handle expired funds? 
Answer: Balances on expired funds will not be converted in SAP.  NASA HQ will determine the process for pulling those expired balances back from the Centers and how they will be maintained at the Agency level.  More information will be provided later.

BE 4) What if a Center decides not to go by travel by organization?

Answer:  The Level 4 fund Centers are based upon the programmatic structures of Project Systems.  Therefore, each Center will have level 4 travel fund Centers (if they choose to have this level) by program.  There may also be level 4 fund Centers to house funding for the indirect travel funds – these could be considered organizational fund Centers.

BE 5)  [WBS Element column] Are you saying that the 22 was assigned to it because it is a sequential number?

Answer:  No, this number came directly from the official AWCS book.  These are the existing agency AWCS codes.  The only exception in this example is that the 62 (AIN) is not in front of the current AWCS codes. We configure the WBS based upon what is in the AWCS table, unless they are Agency approved exceptions.
BE 6) On the SAP WBS element screen, does the “R” mean anything specific or is that SAP terminology?
Answer:  The “R” in the PRI priority column has been NASA configured to identify the official AWCS reporting elements.    In addition, this allows users to perform queries by the AWCS reporting levels.

BE 7) Does an official AWCS WBS level 1 reporting level automatically have an R beside it?

Answer:  Based upon the current AWCS reporting, NASA has configured the WBSs’ within SAP to associate the R beside each reportable AWCS element.

BE 8) Who creates the COP?
Answer:  At the direction of the Agency, the Competency Center will create them.

BE 9) At the end of the first quarter a new program comes up that we weren’t expecting.  How hard is it to get the structure changed to accommodate the new program?

Answer:
Creating a new task under an existing program will not be a difficult task. However, it must still be Center approved and then forwarded to the Competency Center for creation. In the future, close communication with the enterprise office is critical.  Should a Center truly be working an entirely new program, the enterprise office should see that the project office has official WBS’s.    This will enable the Centers to request the tasks beneath.  However, even if the WBS exists, each Center will still be requesting the network/activity to be created by the Competency Center.   More than likely this will not happen in one day.  The first thing the Center needs to have in place is a quick way to consolidate and approve what goes to the Competency Center.  Otherwise you could have one resource manager doing it one way and another doing it another.  This is a Center management responsibility.  These are things that you need to consider as new processes before we go live.

BE 10) We keep hearing Competency Center but then if you ask specific questions of the IPO they never have them.  Are you going to be testing some of these processes?

Answer:
Of course, the amount of activity involved will become evident once implementation has occurred for the Pilot Center.  However, since last summer the budget team as well as other teams has had Competency Center CSC employees as part of our team.  We currently have Charlotte Berry with CSC.  What our support is doing is working right beside us day by day in the testing environment.  CSC support has already learned how to perform the tasks.  The bigger question evolves from a management perspective.  I certainly cannot address how the Competency Center, from a management standpoint, is going to manage the processes of notification.  The individuals we work with today have learned all the Competency Center jobs and have been performing those transactions in the system since last June.  The key is to have them fully abreast of the latest design.  We use them as part of our team to do the work.  These same employees will also answer the help desk calls.  They are highly involved in security for budget in the system.  From a team perspective, we have our Competency Center people supporting us everyday. 

BE 11) Isn’t there also a concept that incorporates some of the Civil Servant process team members in the Competency Center later?

Answer:
Yes, I believe there is a concept of a NASA business functional lead.  So, there could be a budget lead that might help interpret agency direction, Center direction and then oversee what the Competency Center does.  Currently, I do not know who that will be.

BE 12) Once structure has been created by the Competency Center, will the Centers be free to create and control the structure needed for planning?

Answer:
The Agency design for SAP funds control does not provide for funding against any project structure.  Planning will occur in accordance with the enterprise office’s instructions that the Center is responsible for planning to.

BE 13) Can we allocate those WBS’s networks/activities at the Center?

Answer:  Yes.  Phasing plans will be entered on WBSs.   

BE 14) On the reimbursable order number, is that numeric or can it also be alpha numeric?

Answer:  The field is alpha numeric.  What the rule will be is still under configuration.  AR will be responsible for defining it.

Cost Management (CM):  Wanda Nelson

CM 1) What happens when you extend the contract?

Answer:  If the cost on the contract is being calculated using the straight-line methodology, we run into a problem that we can’t post negative cost entries because we are running the straight-line transactions created from the extension in through the service entry sheet. SAP’s position is when you receive a service it is not an accrual.  SAP does not really do accrual accounting.   The process is at the end of each month calculate the straight-line cost; it takes the remaining contract value and the remaining period of performance.  If you had an increase to the contract value, one that was $1200 for 12 months in the 7th month you have a $600 increase.  It would then take that $1200 divided over the 6 months for the period of performance that was remaining.  It calculates based on what is remaining from that period forward. 

CM 2) From a financial management standpoint, we are limited plus or minus 5% straight-line.  The current financial management rule is when we get to the month of June and are coming up on that last quarter, we use the information known for actual performance at the month of June to reset our straight-line for the future. Is there a way to re-adjust that straight-line extension in the month of June?

Answer:  Yes, see the worksheet in this presentation package.

CM 3) What happens when a program is cancelled and the money is sent back?
Answer:  If you need to make an adjustment that is a negative adjustment you reverse the service entry sheet previously posted.  You can do a negative cost entry but you have to go back and reverse one that has been previously posted.  What we were trying to do is make that the exception and try to set up the process where it would be rare to have to do that.
CM 4) Is it correct that our cost type contracts will voucher based on this contractor cost report extension?

Answer:  The contractor cost report extension is to accommodate our large contracts that meet the NASA Form 533 requirements.  Cost accruals will be posted based on the 533 report and the invoices will be coming in separate.  The invoices will be paid based on where the cost was posted.  Costs are recorded ahead of when the voucher is coming.

CM 5) Is one of the uses of the CCR extension to match up invoices to accrued cost?

Answer:  Right, that is the way the process works today.  On a 533 CCR contract the cost is accrued in advance of when the invoice comes in.  The straight-line extension process is for all those types of service orders that don’t have a receiving report.  Most of them are for services and you only receive an invoice telling you when the work was completed. These are accrued on a straight-line basis that equates to Contract Value/Pop.

CM 6) Today I pay invoices regardless of cost being accrued or anything else.  If a contractor incurred the cost, I pay it.  In the future, from a procurement standpoint do I need to care if the invoice is consistent with the 533s?

Answer:  If for instance, $1,000 had been accrued and I receive a $1,200 invoice.  I can adjust the cost $200 to make it reflect the actually cost.  The mechanics the cost people and accounts payable will go through will be to cost it.  You would simply give them the information “I have an invoice that needs to be paid” just like you do today.  

CM 7) Sometimes contractors are late with 533 reports.  If we’ve reversed out the prior months accrual, how am I going to be able to reflect the actual cost against my project?  

Answer:  The CCR allows for the non-receipt of a 533.  The analyst can manually put in an estimate.  You will want to go back and reflect your actuals.  It also allows for a manual receipt of a 533 report or the automated electronic type receipt.     

CM 8) Is a manual accrual going to automatically reverse on day one for the next reporting cycle?

Answer:  I’ve not gone through and figured out how that is going to impact upfront. We are in discussions about whether it could be on day one or set at some interval.  It could be reversed, which is part of the replan.  We were going to be doing a reversal transaction anyway of the service entry sheet so we could post our actual cost.  I couldn’t just run in the net so, I'm hoping based on functionality I can trigger the reversal to make it all happen at the same time.  We still have a lot of work to do.

CM 9) When are we supposed to be talking to our contractors about doing the electronic 533?

Answer:  We have set up a standard format.  My understanding is, as each Center rolls out, if you currently receive an electronic format of a 533 those contracts will remain the same.  Marshall has one and we are interfacing that contract to the CCR extension.  Every Center will have to evaluate each electronic 533 as a separate interface.  

CM 10) Will we have the format to communicate to them to start working?

Answer:  At the present time, we don’t have the processor piece of the CCR.  We know the functional design and what is being laid out but we have not tested it.  I would expect that within the next month to six weeks.

CM 11) When you go live on SAP, in your labor cost processing at Marshall will you still be using your old code?

Answer:  Yes, the old code.  We could have fixed WEB TADS (MSFC Time and Attendance System) but it was our legacy labor system that was setup to capture the current 24-digit structure.   It would have been too invasive to that system to have changed the accounting code in the labor system.

CM 12) Do you plan on maintaining the existing labor system?  Are you going to have to maintain your legacy code until we go live on HR?

Answer:  Yes.  We wanted to have one legacy system that existed today and let all the Centers adopt it.  Nobody had a system stable enough to support 10 Centers until we could get on HR.  The decision was made to keep legacy systems because it would increase cost to change them to the new FCS.  

CM 13) Is Marshall one interface?

Answer:  MSFC has 7 on NSMS and Fed/Mil and 6 on Labor Processing.  They break it down when you do the interfaces and extensions into more manageable pieces.  For instance, one of the interfaces is for labor hours and FTE calculations and an other interface for the dollars, one for crosswalk table, one for month end adjustments and split week approval.  Even though it is broken down into more manageable pieces there are still 20 page functional designs for each one of them.  

CM 14) On NSMS transactions that are coming into the system are they going to be fund validated in terms of interface from NSMS? I'm talking about on the issues.

Answer:  Yes, real time updates.

CM 15) Are they restricted on the number of object classes that are being used?

Answer:  Yes, they are restricted to the OMB object class and the NASA object class.  The Agency is reviewing the object classes and is sending out a modified version.  You may see information come out in the very near future that some various cost element/commitment items are going to a higher level, not necessarily a rollup.  

CM 16) Should the task order relate to the WBS?

Answer:  Yes.  The 533 handbook tells you how to setup a contract relationship between the task and the work the contractor is to perform and the cost associated to that work.  You can split accounting lines over more than one reporting category.  It makes it messy but you can do that.

CM 17) Does it necessarily require a PLI?

Answer:  You have to record the cost in SAP as a PLI, but from the CCR standpoint of calculating the cost transactions it is behind the scene.

CM 18) I can’t prepare for the customer if I have a pool manager, I’ve done 10 different tasks or 10 different internal service orders for that particular customer.  Can I take it down to the task level internal service order level of detail to see each one of those 10 orders or tasks and how much came from each one?

Answer:  We think we are going to be able to accommodate that with a reference field.  It may have to be a custom report, but it is our goal.

CM 19) We’ve heard a lot about the allocated but not about the demand.  We are concerned it has been pushed off the table.

Answer:  It didn’t get pushed off the table.  We’re dealing with this now. 2/3’s of what we are doing is custom development.  We have 3 interfaces and about 5 or 7 extensions.  That is a lot of work figuring out how to do all of it.  Some of the standard functionality things available were not looked at as closely as they should have been. 

Conversion (Cvn):  Wanda Broadhead

Cvn 1) Why would we bring travel documents in if they’re fully liquidated in a previous year?

Answer:  In order to convert the total Budget for all Open Appropriations, we must convert fully liquidated travel and labor at a highly summarized level.  They will be converted through the project cost not associated to a contract conversion.  It won’t be associated with a separate document.  You won’t see one for this final order and another for another travel order and so on.  It will be summarized because we do have to support the entire appropriations.

Cvn 2) What will you do to know the status of the full contract?

Answer:  The history for all Open Contracts will be converted.
Cvn 3) Will it take care of all those old closed codes?

Answer:  If a contract is open and there are cancelled appropriations on the open contract, they will be converted at a highly summarized level.  Example of a project structure for a cancelled appropriation – 62-RD-256.  

Cvn 4) Since we're doing midyear implementation, are some of your answers going to be different?

Answer:  It depends on the question.  About the only difference between a year-end and mid-year conversion is that mid-year will have two periods to post in SAP, one for prior year and one for current year.

Cvn 5) Do we have to follow the rule in SAP where you link ALI and PLI during conversions?  

Answer:  Yes.  Currently, we are still discussing the ALI/PLI issue based on some of the software gaps.

Cvn 6) Do we have to go to the legacy system and match up ALI and PLI?  Are there Marshall business rules that you developed to make that happen?  

Answer:  You have to try to.  You may or may not actually have PLIs today that are mapped directly to your ALIs.  That is a business rule. You have to create something.  We did not have those captured in our legacy system.  I know some Centers do but I think not all.  Currently, we are still discussing the ALI/PLI issue based on some of the software gaps.  Yes, we developed some business rules.  These business rules were developed based on the functionality of SAP.  

For example, you have a grant that has a research paper you are expecting to get.  That may be your procurement line item and it may be the only thing from a procurement standpoint you would be looking for.  However, because the way the system drives you depending on the accounting code, the SCS elements, if you have some that represent a cost pool, or a carrier account you would have to have another PLI.  For instance, some could be project money and some carrier account money.  The system will drive you to have two procurement line items.  In your automated program, you could call the first one procurement line item 1 and the next procurement line item 2.

Cvn 7) If the procurement line items you’re developing for the conversion aren’t necessarily contraction are they system procurement?

Answer:  Right, if you use them from your procurement system that is great.  However, if you don’t have the functionality or the data you'll have to get creative.  For example if you have some on your purchase requisitions, some Centers I believe today have purchase requisitions for their goods receipt, but actually have a procurement line item on it.  If you have that available, you can use the information and bring over that specific procurement line item.  However, in those cases when you don’t have anything in the legacy system that you can tap into you’d have to be creative.

Accounts Payable (AP):  Undrell Palmer

AP 1) If we receive an update of bank information and we need to make changes do we still make a payment?

Answer:  The update to the vendor file is a 2-step process. Changes are updated and then there is a confirmation of those changes.  You can enter the change into the system but it has to be confirmed before we can actually make a payment.

AP 2) If we send a change of information to the Competency Center, what timeframe will I have to wait before I can make a payment?  For instance, there could be a discount involved.  Who will be responsible for the penalty if one is charged?

Answer:  These rules are yet to be defined. This will take close coordination between the Centers and the Competency Center.

AP 3) Do we pay by CCD+ on Commercial Invoices?

Answer:  Yes.

AP 4) CCD+ normally is for single invoice.  If there are multiple invoices by vendor does that summarize them to one payment going in.  Do I have enough space for more payment than one invoice to include addendum information?

Answer:  Each invoice is going to have a separate addendum.  In addition, each invoice is a separate payment so if you have 12 payments for a day you have 12 payments going into that account.

AP 5) How does the IPAC impact our Center books?

Answer:  The current process is for HHS to cite NASA Headquarters (HQ) ALC on their (HHS’) 224. The charges are reflected on HQ’s 224 as a payment and on HHS as a collection. HQ will continue to IPAC Centers for their portion of the HHS drawdowns and post a journal voucher referencing the Center’s ALC. This entry is a debit to HQ cash and a credit to the Center’s cash. Centers that are not on SAL, the process continues as today. For those Centers that have implemented SAO, the IPAC from HQ will still occur and be recorded on the IPAC transaction log with no financial impact in the General Ledger.

AP 6) How is travel processed in SAP?

Answer:  Travel Orders are committed and obligated when Travel Manager sends it to SAP.   Then you either get a voucher in and it is costed based on the voucher or at the end of the month if you haven’t received a voucher.  Then the cost is accrued.  At the end of the month, a report will be run to determine any travel orders with no voucher. This amount will be accrued. 

AP 7) Are you saying there are edits to verify required fields?

Answer:  Yes, the interface does have validation edits for incoming and outgoing to assure that all the required fields have data. There is no validation to assure that the data is correct.

AP 8) You can get IPACs up to the last day of the month but a lot of them do not reference the correct contract.  Other than the ALC there really isn’t any edit that will give accurate information to correctly post.

Answer:  I know you have to have data in the required fields or they won’t accept it.  Of course, it doesn’t validate what is in the required field.    
AP 9) A lot of times you have to look at the mail code of the person identified on the IPAC document to figure out even what agency it is.  It is a real challenge.  Are we going to post to a clearing account every month like 80F3885 for example?  That is what we do for IPACs that we can’t find a home for by month end.  Do we manually make the judgment for those at the Center level?

Answer:  You will use the same process tomorrow for identifying errors.

AP 10) Is there a sorting mechanism?  What about the “The” or “A” like “The Georgetown University”?  What is the proper way when you are looking at this master vendor file?

Answer:  Search term one captures the cage code.  You can use the vendor's name.  MSFC used the vendor names as they appeared in the Dunn & Bradstreet data-cleaning tool, however, the key matching will be on the cage code not on the vendor name.

AP 11) In terms of sending files to D&B, is that something we at the Centers are supposed to be doing as well as you at Pilot?  

Answer:  Number one, it is good to have the vendor file as clean as it can get before using the D&B tool, for example eliminate the duplicates, look at any names, look at spellings (IBMs vs International Business Machines).  We’ve found it is very helpful to send the information to D&B.  It is not very expensive.  I would recommend it but I can’t say Center's are required to use it.  It is very helpful in matching up the partnering function that is so important in SAP to get the parent corporation.  There is going to be a fallout.  Either there is no cage code match or the information we have is different.  D&B will then call vendors or do some manual work with that fallout of contractors.  It is going to make sure when we bring in additional vendors into the existing file that it will be complete, accurate and clean data.

AP 12) For D&B is there an Agency contact in place or should we contact them directly?   Will it cost us?  Is the cost per line or per action they have to take?  What is the turnaround time? 

Answer:  You can use our contact.  Yes, it will cost you but it is not very expensive.  I think it is per vendor.  So if you send them 14,000 vendors and it turns out 7,000 of those are duplicates you have just doubled the cost.  D&B started working with us before we had them on contract.  When they took the first cut of our file they had some data back in approximately two weeks.  Their estimate is four weeks

AP 13) If your vendor file has every cage code do you still send it to D&B for cleansing?

Answer:  You might want to send only for the partnering aspect of it. It will make the data standard and make the conversion program that does the partnering (matching) run much more efficiently with less errors.

AP 14) We took an action to make sure every one of our contracts had a cage code.  What do we do now?  

Answer:  The same cage code should have the same vendor.  It goes into one vendor file for the Agency.  

AP 15) What happens when we have 17,000 vendors and you have 14,000?

Answer:  Then there will be matching and merging of that data.  Not all of it will be required to be added to the vendor file.

AP 16) We get a lot of fund adjustment memos.  They commit at the end of the year and may say “move $3.50 here, move $20 here”.  How will we be doing this cleanup now?

Answer:  Your funding is going to be at a different level.  Remember how Cynthia showed that you don’t have fund control all the way down to those little organizational tasks.  Your funds will be at such a high level you won’t have to be doing reprogramming.  We explained this to the Steering Committee on Friday.  A few more people understood on Friday that this was a very difficult and challenging thing.

AP 17) The vast majority of our contracts do not have PLIs.  Are we to presume that if we have a service contract supporting life science that is PLI number 1 unless we have some kind of reports and DRDs that are in there?  Would you have a PLI for a 533 submittal?

Answer:  There is no requirement to submit a NF533 by PLI.  

AP 18) Don't we need a PLI for a 533 on a deliverable that may be a final report?

Answer:  You have to look at how you want to manage your contract.  We can talk about one thing for how we would convert contracts that are already existing today and that was in matching some of those rules.  In that case, you may call it PLI 1.  How you want to manage your contract going forward once you are implemented into SAP you need to think about what makes sense.  What are the rules that I need to do to setup how that PLI needs to map?  For goods receipt, you want a widget, 15 widgets, no problem.  For a big contract you need to come up with a way to manage it that makes sense.  It will be different for different contracts.  You may set it up as contract WBS.  I’m saying contract WBS, which would be different than the WBS we were talking today with Cynthia.  You may want to look at things from support type roles, functions they have, or task orders. You have to do something.  You have to have PLI and they are driven based on your project vs cost Center vs object class.  You are going to have some breaks that the system is going to mandate. 

AP 19) Are we going to have to go through every one of those contracts and modify them to come up with a PLI?

Answer:  No, you would not have to do that.  For conversion you could use PLI 1 and a generic description.

AP 20) Does the contractor need to change their accounting system?

Answer:  We have not asked the contractors to change anything.  Today they send in an invoice at dollar value, this will continue.  NASA using SAP will be transparent to them.  

AP 21) Construction for example, pretty vanilla on how you do things.  Suppose we have two projects that we’ve combined together into one.  We could potentially have a CLIN on Project A and  CLIN for Project B.  We may have a CLIN for the bonds and insurance that they can bill against separately.  Would you have to have two of those line items because it would be chargeable against different ALIs?

Answer:  Not necessarily if they are both direct projects.  If you wanted to manage them separately that way, it is an option.  You could conceivably have two different ALIs if you’re all project.  If you have two direct projects providing funding, it can still be one PLI.  If you have a project and a cost Center, you have two PLIs.
AP 22) Are we ever going to get to the point where we will have electronic invoices?

Answer:  We have them now.

AP 23) Can the system override dates?

Answer:  You can manually override if you want to pay it earlier.  You can change some dates manually

AP 24) Can we move discounts to a specific PWC?

Answer:  Not in SAP.  You have to start at the top and move it if it is moving funds.  You go back to that document chain.  It can be done, but it is not something you are going to want to do on a monthly basis.

AP 25) At JSC it is taken out of our accounting system but as far as procurement there is a plan between procurement and FFE saying your mod is still $1mm but the variance will be the discount.  How is that going to be handled in SAP?

Answer:  We are working through the BW functionality so that we will maintain the procurement obligation, which is the legal document, and yet all of the accounting impacts, discount, penalty, interest, taxes, etc. will be reflected on the contract.  All of that will also be shown.  You will have a procurement obligation as well as your accounting obligation.

Accounts Receivable (AR):  Shirley Bumatay
AR 1) Do we calculate what the dollars will be for statistical costs based on the estimate?
Answer:
Yes, statistical costs will be calculated externally, based on the estimated costs, using the estimated price sheet; these estimated statistical costs will then be entered on the sales order, along with direct costs, to record forecast of revenue, and later recorded as costs to bill to the customer.

AR 2) Why is amount of funds recorded against the order based on what your advance payment is?  Is the system doing it or is that your policy?

Answer:  This is a JFMIP requirement and NASA’s requirement that we follow JFIMP.   The procedure is when we receive customer order information that there is either an advance or a waiver.  If the advance is not for the total order value, funds will not be recorded for the entire order value, but only the portion for which NASA receives an advance.
AR 3) What do you mean by manual JV?  You’re not talking about as in SGL JV are you?

Answer:  Yes, it is an SGL manual JV.  It only has to done one time, and then you don’t worry about it any more.  We are trying to streamline the process.
AR 4) Is this JV done for each reimbursable bill?

Answer:  No, not for each reimbursable bill.  This JV is done per reimbursable order for all estimated statistical costs.  If your Center wants to do it on every single bill they can, but I don’t think they’ll want to.
AR 5) We do a manual JV to the SGL for the statistical costs that we calculate based on the estimate, upfront on our order.  Three of the statistical costs we charge right now are HQ overhead, contract administration, and depreciation.   Those are not funded with appropriations.  On the manual JV, do we book the cost?  Is it going to be funded anywhere?
Answer:  Beginning in FY2003, Centers will receive the authority to incur cost and revenue for all statistical costs.  The only charge that this is different for is depreciation.  For the contract admin and HQ G&A, the Centers will receive the authority that MSFC (agency) currently receives.  Marshall (agency) will still be managing this activity for the agency, so the Centers will still send actual dollars for MSFC (agency) to use in managing this activity.  At the same time that the Center creates the JV to record cost to the order WBS to allow billing, cost recovery Centers will be credited for MSFC (agency) to use in this activity.  Managing this activity for the agency has no effect on MSFC’s (Center) funds.

AR 6) We record depreciation as cost, for reporting purposes, to keep track of it.  Is there any way to do this in the system (SAP)?

Answer:  Yes, we will be able to track depreciation in SAP. Since the Wave 2 Bootcamp meeting, there have been some changes in the area of depreciation.  Based on the estimated price sheet/report (EPS/R), depreciation is entered on the sales order as part of the forecast of revenue. Once the JV is done to record depreciation against memo/contra-memo accounts (not revenue/contra-revenue accounts) (a debit to depreciation and a credit to the contra-account (these net to zero, but show individually on sales order report in PS)) it can later be billed.  You will be able to “see” this depreciation amount by running a sales order report in PS.  Depreciation will be billed as revenue for services (GL acct 5200.0000).  Once depreciation has been billed and collected, the entry to GL acct 5200.0000 will be reversed and the miscellaneous receipt entry will be made.  We are attempting to streamline this process.
AR 7) Will the contra revenue be reflected in depreciation?
Answer:  See answer above.  Depreciation entered on the sales order as part of forecast of revenue, depreciation recorded on JV to allow billing to occur, depreciation recorded against GL account 5200.0000 when billed, and depreciation that is recorded finally as miscellaneous receipts are all for the same amount.  The net impact to NASA funds is zero, as it should be.
AR 8) I have an order and an XX value.  I want to make sure it totals up to all my cost, one of those costs being depreciation, currently I have a report at my Center that does that.  What am I going to have in SAP?
Answer:  SAP standard provides a report by order out of PS where you can see your revenue and costs amounts.  You can compare this to the sales order forecast of revenue, which is equal to the customer order value.  In addition, when you go into resource related billing for the sales order, you can see costs to-date, billed to-date, and amount to be billed with all amounts identified.      

NASA/BW/SAP is also creating a report to capture all costs plus much more for the order.  If you look at MSR Accounts Receivable by Customer Agreement Report in MDM, you will get an idea of what will be included in this report.   Depreciation will be there, along with much more information.  This report will cross all sub-processes.  

AR 9) Is the collection register log a cash receipts report that your collection agent would want to keep?  Will we be doing that in SAP?
Answer:  The collection register log would be used for cash audit.  Collection register log, checks/cash and SF215 (deposit ticket) would be used together to determine that everything agrees before the deposit is made.  It will be done in SAP, however at the current time, post-processing must be taken to record the collections in the accounting system correctly.  When we record the collections/deposits in SAP there is no accounting impact.

AR 10) If our Center doesn’t use Cash-Link are we going to need to begin using it?  Do we need when we go to SAP?

Answer:  No, Cash-Link is not a requirement.  There is not even an interface for it.  The federal government is trying to get away from the use of paper checks and this is just a mechanism to use to this end.  It also confirms what Treasury says has been credited to our account, but which we actually never see.  Cash-Link provides the user information on collections received by electronic means (electronic funds transfer, fed wire, credit card payments).  
AR 11) Can you define what Cash-Link is as you refer to it?
Answer:  It shows all deposits made to your account either by yourself, or by electronic means.  See answer above.  
AR 12) We have Fed wires but we don’t have electronic funds transfer.  Are you saying that some Centers are paid by credit card?

Answer:  Yes

AR 13) Is there one customer number list like there is one vendor list?

Answer:  Receivables have moved toward the thought of Center customer lists. Centers could still see all the customers for the agency, based on their search criteria.  Some of the reasons for Center lists are as follows:

1) Centers have many customers that are not common across the agency 

2) Our database for customers is no where near as large as the vendor database across the agency

3) Centers do not actually issue checks to vendors, whereas Centers do send invoices, dunning letters, etc. to the customer.   The customer needs to have an address and contact person with whom they can communicate with and send payments to.   

4) Centers are more able to manage receivables for their customers.  They can see just their customers and get a Customer List that can be used in analyzing activity on a customer’s account.  If you want to see the activity on a customer, enter their customer number and you will see only your Center’s activity for that customer, not activity for the whole agency for that customer. 

5) SD is used for our reimbursable activity; the sales area is required and the sales area is made up of at least one sales organization, one distribution channel and one division.  We would not be able to bill from the Center if all of NASA was one sales organization.  

6) Since the majority of our customers are for reimbursable activity, we are creating all customers as if they were reimbursable type customers (minimal effort to add sales area data to each customer). 

7) Team discussed and agreed that separate customer master would be a better choice. 

Some pros for one NASA customer list would be as follows:

1) There would be only one customer (with the same address) in the customer master database, which may prevent problems with IPAC and prevent confusion.   

2) Reporting on total customer activity for the agency may be more streamlined.  

Also, see answer below.
AR 14) Is it up to the Centers discretion how they do that.  You could have Boeing at Conova Park and Boeing at some place else.  Would we setup a different number for each one of those?
Answer:  The agency should follow the same procedures for managing the customer database.  If the customer has a different mailing address, then the customer should have a different customer number.   We have been moving in the direction that the customer master would be Center-maintained, not centrally maintained.  There are pros and cons either which way we go.   If this activity is done at the Center level, Centers would have the responsibility to ensure there are no duplicate customers with the same address across the agency.   As other Centers implement SAP, they should match customers against existing customers to prevent unnecessary duplication.  Since Centers should not have too many customers in common, if duplicate customers are found, it may be that the customer is converted with the same number for the new Center (sales organization).

One thing to keep in mind is that not all transaction codes have business area or sales organization selection (ex. the down payment liquidation (F-29)).  Currently, if the customer has the same number across the agency, you’d see all the activity of the customer, which could be difficult to work with.  

AR 15) Is there a field for the expiration date of the order?

Answer:  No, not right now.  There has been a change since the Wave 2 Bootcamp.  The customers Purchase Order Date on the sales order will be used for the expiration date for the order.  We figured the expiration date is more important than the Purchase Order Date.  The user can search for orders with given expiration date.  
AR 16) Do we have the flexibility to calculate statistical costs and manually report it?
Answer:  No.  If we use costing sheets to calculate statistical costs right now, the normal rate for HQ G&A, Contract Admin, etc. either would be at the HQ-issued rate or be completely waived.  You wouldn’t have any flexibility to add other potential type statistical costs without the use of user exits.  What we are doing is manually recording the statistical costs based on the estimated price sheet.  I would guess the chart you are talking about would be on your estimated price sheet; then you would do your JV for that amount.

AR 17) Over the past couple of weeks, the status of accounts receivable module and the program as a whole in the reimbursable area were “stop test” in some things.  In addition, some of the processes had changed significantly from November to now.  Are those changes reflected in your briefing here?
Answer: Yes.
Standard General Ledger:  MelaJo Kubacki

SGL 1) Is it parked by the fiscal year end?

Answer:  Every month you are to go in and ensure that your parked items have been processed.  They need to be done every month.

SGL 2) Will you be able to communicate back to the Centers what magnitude of change, in terms of workload, the Centers will go through to closeout at fiscal year end?  
Answer:  Yes, it is a lot more streamlined.  Remember it is one system.  You will be able to see everything everyday of the month so you will not wait to the last day of the month to resolve issues.  You don’t have to wait until the SGL is closed.  You can generate reports at any point and time.  In developing a streamlined process, our goal is to close month end in three days and year-end by October 5th.  At the end of the year thee will be available period 13 - 16 so we can run the closing a number of times.  We will be able to run the closing and still be able to go back to produce our financial statements. Periods have been designated for specific tasks to occur, so if one task doesn’t work it will not prevent us from going on to the next task.  The Centers will not worry about getting the system closed because it will be done one time by HQ, the Agency or someone.  From a Center perspective, your main function will be the preparation, making sure all the data is in and making sure it is good data.  Centers will do more analysis.

SGL 3) Will there be any kind of Center close at month end or fiscal year end?  What kind of preparation will the Center be responsible for?
Answer:  The Center’s will definitely be involved in the process. Each Center is responsible for entering and validating their data. Once all Centers have validated their data, then the system will be closed.  Center’s will do a lot of analysis, many verifications, making sure the cost assessments were processed, verify property postings, etc.  When HQ is notified that a Center is ready to close, HQ can run reports in SAP to see if there are problems.  HQ will not, in most cases, fix it.  They will contact the Center and ask corrections to be processed.  There are some things HQs does maintain and can fix, but most of it is going to come back to the Center.  The way it is setup in the process is wherever the transaction originated that caused the problem will have to reverse it through their process and correct it.  

SGL 4) Tell us about the Foreign International quarterly report.

Answer:  Foreign payments in foreign currency will not be in the SAP system.    However, we make many payments in US dollars to foreign companies and will still need to capture that information.  Some of the data for the report will not be in SAP. This report will be prepared outside of SAP.
Interface Inventory (Int):
Anita Webster  

Int 1) There are specific people already at the Centers that are dedicated to NSMS. Are you communicating with them or are you requiring us to?
Answer:  The IPO is working with the SESAAS NSMS team to coordinate the timing of the NSMS release that will contain the IFM code. The NSMS team will distribute a Version Description Document (VDD) that will explain to each Centers’ NSMS support team how and when to implement this release.

Int 2) If the Centers have any unique requirements built into NSMS at their Center, the Core Financial Project doesn’t pay for the effort to make these Center unique requirements work in the new version.  

Answer:
That is correct. It is the Center’s responsibility to install the version of the core NSMS application that is integrated with Core Financial. The Center must apply any Center unique modifications to the core NSMS with this release as it does with any other NSMS release.

Int 3) We've built an upfront transaction validation system to do funds control on orders from NSMS.  We are also initiating transactions from NSMS to update the current legacy system general ledger.  We are assuming that neither of these scenarios will continue to exist after implementing Core Financial.  If there are no other Center uniques applied to my Center's instance of NSMS what changes need to be made at my Center to the core NSMS?

Answer:  If your Center is operating NSMS as released by SESAAS with only the two transactions identified then you will probably not have any additional work needed. You will need to task your Core Financial Implementation team to work with your NSMS support team to verify this is true. There will be considerable effort involved in implementing the new version of NSMS due to the new technology that Core Financial is using (i.e., EAI application). Guidance will be provided in the NSMS VDD as well as from my group with the IPO.
Int 4) I heard the electronic 533 is not a requirement.

Answer:  The Core Financial Project has an agency requirement to provide the electronic receipt of Contractor Cost Reports (i.e., 533) into the Contractor Cost Report (CCR) extension. There is still effort required at each Center to implement this integration. Mapping sessions must be conducted with each contractor currently submitting electronic CCRs to the Center. Every effort will be made to transform the contractor submitted data within e*Gate to the format expected by the CCR extension.

Training (Tra):
Evelyn Lewis
Tra 1) From the program strategy they outline four types of training.  Are you going to be dealing with all of those?

Answer:  No.  We are developing training related to the roles, which reflect the tasks needed to perform the processes.  We’ve defined  some prerequisite training but the only prerequisite course we are supplying is SAP RWD 4.C .  This Web-based course teaches end-users how to navigate within the SAP system.  For instance if people aren’t familiar with SGL, it would be a prerequisite to take the SGL course prior to taking SGL training related to SAP.  The other areas of training are mentioned in the Program Training Strategy and we are not developing training for them.

Tra 2) Is the 406 navigation course to help people navigate?

Answer:  SAP RWD 4.6C provides the basics of how to get into SAP, how to go from screen to screen, what a T code means, etc.  It is an interactive web based tool.  It will be available to your end-users the month before the training starts.  It is a prerequisite for all the courses.  The length of times it takes to go through depends on the person and how comfortable they are taking a web based course, how comfortable they are on computers, and how comfortable they are working in SAP to begin with.  Four hours would be considered a long session.

Tra 3) Are you developing needs assessments?

Answer:  We didn’t necessarily do a needs assessment.  Each of the 76 roles has a set of skills associated with them.  As we talked to managers and team leads, we confirmed that the end-users had the necessary skills to perform the roles.

Tra 4) How many courses are there and when will they be available? Who will be recruited as a trainer?

Answer:  There are 33 instructor lead and 14 web-based courses.  They will be completed very close to the delivery period, which will be around mid-July for printing for the training in August and September.  The training is rolled out by Wave and any kind of unique situation your Center may have will be built into the training.  The data packets for the training are specific to your Center and will not be available until it rolls out to your Center.  If you want to know about what the training entails, what is in the courses, what the descriptions of the courses are, etc. that is available.  We will be getting input from Center Process Teams and that input will be relayed to us so we can tweak any needed components of the training.  

Trainers will be functional people at your Centers who are working on the project.

Tra 5) Can Wave 2 Centers participate in the Wave 1 training?

Answer:  What we recommend is when the Wave 1 Centers train they allow an extra seat in the training rooms for the Wave 2 Centers who want to send potential trainers.  However there are 15 seats maximum per course.

Tra 6) Whose responsibility is it to deliver the train the trainer?  Have you done the train the trainers?  

Answer:  It is the responsibility of the Project Change Management Team.  The train the trainer is going to be done right before the training.    

Tra 7) In terms of the CBT, can this be used for active and casual users on the web based courses?

Answer:  Anybody can take it.  They are on the website and can be taken when you have time.  It is available the same period as the instructor lead training, which is the two months prior to Go Live. It can be repeated until you feel comfortable with the content.

Tra 8) Two months before Go Live for Wave 2 is right in the middle of vacations.  Then we will have Thanksgiving and Christmas.  Is there any special consideration taken for that?

Answer:  No, it is such a tight schedule there are no other options.  What is driving the training is your Go Live date.  People are going to know ahead of time when the training is scheduled.  I hope that they can accommodate what they are doing over the holidays based on the schedule needed to take the courses.  Not everybody is in training for two months.  You may have 4 hours, 4 hours, and 6 hours for your training.  
Tra 9) John, when you come to the Centers what can we expect?

Answer:  I’m working in the organization alignment area initially doing the Understanding Phase.  We will bring a list of roles.  We will see how those roles fit into your Center.  We will determine along with the Process Team an initial mapping of what people are going to be associated with those roles.  For example who are the requisitioners or who are the buyers.  We have established courses mapped to roles and roles mapped to people, which will give us an estimation of how many people are going to be in each course.  That information will be forwarded to the training people to determine how many courses, classrooms and instructors are needed.  

When the Implementation Team actually does the Implementation Phase we will reconfirm a few more areas.   All the information we have compiled will be from talking to the Process Team.  We talk to managers and team leads to confirm the information is true.  For instance the process team said there were 150 bankcard holders.  We find out things like "yes, this person is a bankcard holder but this person doesn’t even work at Ames anymore", or "this person used to be a bankcard holder but now they are not".  

We will also do the mapping of security profiles to end-users.  We will have all the end-users in a role, security profiles mapped to the roles.  We will do a people to security profile mapping.  For instance, an individual maybe mapped to three roles and these are the different security profiles.  The individual will have access to do the different transactions and activities in the system.  

In addition,  we will tweak and roll out the change discussion guides.  The change discussion guides are a pre-training communication tool.  Before people go to training they will go through change discussions.  A change discussion guide is overview information about a particular functional area, the roles, frequently asked questions, key terms, etc.  These will be delivered by managers and supervisors.  We will do a coaching session with the managers and supervisors to get them up to speed on how some of those things are changing, what they need to communicate to the employees, and then they will actually deliver the change discussions.

Tra 10) When do we get the change discussion guides?

Answer:  They will be rolled out when we go through the Implementation Phase at your Center.  This allows you to have the most current information.  

Tra 11) What happens during stakeholder analysis?

Answer:  Its been done different at each Center and they all work well.  It depends on the Center's project management’s philosophy.  How the project management wants to handle it at your Center will be fine.  See examples below:

One way is to start with each of the sub teams, integration teams, process teams, change management teams, and get who each feels are the stakeholders.  We begin doing an analysis of those stakeholders from their perspective by ranking stakeholder audience groups on their level of influence on the project's success, where they are currently on the change acceptance curve, where they need to be, etc.  That information is presented to the project management for a final decision.  

The other way is to get everybody together in a room a couple of times.  It is an iterative process.  It doesn’t take a long time to do but it is something that we will meet, talk about it, get something down on paper, go to think about, and then we come back together.  It is done as many times as it takes to get it hammered out.  

Tra 12) How do you incorporate the change readiness data from each Center?  

Answer:  The change readiness assessment that was undertaken for your Center will help drive the Communication Plan when we get to the next phase.  In the implementation phase you can begin building your Communication Plan.  You’ll take information from your change readiness survey and incorporate it.  The type of information you will get from your change readiness survey is really around the preferred communication channels and things of that nature, which the audiences at your Center prefer to use for job related change information.  When we begin planning your communications you will want to take those things into consideration.  You are also going to get an assessment of levels of trust.  A lot of the questions deal with management trust.  It will guide you in determining whom should relay what kinds of communication.  You will look to it to build the communication plan and any other change management initiatives.

Tra 13) How do we work with the IST?

Answer:  The IST is structured differently at every Center.  What happened at Marshall was unique because this project got off the ground before the IST was here.  Our IST has representatives who are part-time, which means they sometimes come to meetings and sometimes they don’t.  We’ve worked very closely with the IST on logistical training requirements. The IST representative got here in time to be very effective in making sure we had rooms built because there was no place at the Center for training.  The IST representative was very instrumental in packaging these rooms so they would be used for all IFM initiatives and the cost would be shared across more than just Core.  The IST has indicated that it wants to work with us more closely in communication as we get closer to Go Live.  The IST at other Centers could be a resource.  The IST at Marshall didn’t have any fulltime people to put on the project so we couldn’t use them as a resource pool.  At other Centers, they may have resources that can go fulltime out to Core and roll back onto the IST.  The ISTs have always been described as a resource pool that gives the Centers some continuity among the different change initiatives with some ability to transfer knowledge and lessons learned among the projects.  If you have an IST that has fulltime resources, they would be a good source for change management help.  The other thing that impacts how much they can work with you is if they are fulltime or part time to the IST.  That makes a big difference.  One recommendation to all the Centers would be to try to pull some assistance from your HR organizations.  That person will know the Center and the different organizations that comprise it.  

Tra 14) Give us more information about the Change Agents Workshop and the role of a Change Agent?

Answer:  The change agent workshop can be a one-time event or you can hold it multiple times.  The workshop kicks off the change agent process.  The materials are developed here and are modified based on Center needs.  It gives the change agents an understanding of the change management concepts and processes.  It allows them time to develop action plans for how they can become active members of the change management network for the project.  Change agents are NASA employees proportionally picked from the various organizations at your Center because Core Financial hits all organizations.  Change agents for us work with the project about an hour or two a week.  After the initial workshop, they come for a once a month meeting to share issues and concerns they've gathered from the field.  We try to have the right people in the meeting to deal with the issues we can and other issues are document for further work.  Whatever the big topic is that month becomes a special presentation topic for the next month's meeting.  The change agents come in for about an hour to learn just enough to give a 5 or 10 minute talk.  These people do not work for the project.  They are doing us a huge favor by building this two-way communication channel between here and the Center.  I try to keep it very informal and informative for them so they’ll keep coming back.  They are going to do formal presentations for your team and also informal communications for your team at lunch or around the work place.  They are going to be able to talk about Core Financial, relay correct messages, and help us to dispel rumors out there.  These change agents are not going to be experts on Core Financial.  The expectation set for the change agent is that they can do an elevator conversation.  From the time the elevator door closes at the top of the building to the time they get to the bottom floor they can relay at least something about the Core Financial Project.  Change agent selection criteria has been posted.  

Tra 15) How do you assess whether the change agent concept is working or not?  Are those people spreading the word?  Are people more informed than they’ve ever been informed?  How many change agents do you have at Marshall?

Answer:  The change agents tell us where their people are and the questions they are asking.  You can get a feel from those type of questions, concerns and the involvement that gives a perspective of where their organizations are along that change acceptance curve.  When we started the change agent process the questions were “what does IFMP stand for”, “what is the scope of Core Financial”.  Now a question is “we need someone here to tell us about the electronic 533 process because people in my organization are concerned about that”.  That tells us a little something about what people and their organizations are getting.  We have also asked them to start keeping a communication log.   There are 26 change agents at Marshall.

Tra 16) Are you expecting change agents from other Centers to come to Marshall?

Answer:  No, you’ll have your own change agent meetings. You will be provided information on how it was done at the Pilot Center.

Tra 17) Is there a glossary of terms from SAP to NASA terms?

Answer:  There is a glossary of terms in the Online Quick Reference Tool and the MDM.  We will make sure those two are coordinated .  There are also terms in the Change Discussion Guides.
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